
 

 

 
Warwickshire Waste Partnership 

 
Date:  Wednesday 14 June 2023 
Time:  2.00 pm 
Venue:  Committee Room 2, Shire Hall 
 
Membership 
Councillor Heather Timms (Chair) 
Councillor Richard Baxter-Payne 
Councillor Sarah Millar 
Councillor Bhagwant Singh Pandher 
Councillor Andrew Wright 
Councillor Margaret Bell 
Councillor Lorraine Grocott 
Councillor Sue Markham 
Councillor Will Roberts 
Councillor Carolyn Watson-Merret 
 
Items on the agenda: -  
  
1.   General 

 
 

 
(1) Apologies 
 

 
 

(2) Disclosures of Pecuniary and Non-Pecuniary Interests  
Members are required to register their disclosable pecuniary interests within 28 days 
of their election of appointment to the Council. Any changes to matters registered or 
new matters that require to be registered must be notified to the Monitoring Officer 
as soon as practicable after they arise. 
  
A member attending a meeting where a matter arises in which they have a 
disclosable pecuniary interest must (unless they have a dispensation):  
  

•        Declare the interest if they have not already registered it  
•        Not participate in any discussion or vote  
•        Leave the meeting room until the matter has been dealt with  
•        Give written notice of any unregistered interest to the Monitoring Officer 

within 28 days of the meeting  
  
Non-pecuniary interests relevant to the agenda should be declared at the 
commencement of the meeting. 
  
The public reports referred to are available on the Warwickshire Web 

 



 

Warwickshire Waste 
Partnership 
Wednesday 14 June 2023 

Page 2 
  

 

https://democracy.warwickshire.gov.uk/uuCoverPage.aspx?bcr=1 
  
  
(3) Chair's Announcement 
 

 
 

(4) Minutes of the previous meeting, including matters arising 
 

5 - 12 
 
2.   Welcome and introduction to new members 

 
 

 
3.   Waste Management Performance Data 2022-2023 and national 

benchmarking (2021/22) 
 

13 - 16 

 
4.   Update on the development of the Resources and Waste 

Strategy for England 
 

Verbal 
Report 

 
5.   Update on waste education 

 
Verbal 
Report  

6.   MRF update 
 

Verbal 
Report  

7.   Waste Partners Update 
 

17 - 22 
 
8.   Action on Climate change 

 
Verbal 
Report  

9.   Agenda item suggestions for next meeting 
 

 
 
10.   Dates of future meetings  
 27th September 2023 2pm  

6th December 2023 2pm  
 

 

Monica Fogarty 
Chief Executive 

Warwickshire County Council 
Shire Hall, Warwick 

 
 



 

Warwickshire Waste 
Partnership 
Wednesday 14 June 2023 

Page 3 
  

 

 
To download papers for this meeting scan here with your camera  

 
Disclaimers 
 
Webcasting and permission to be filmed 
Please note that this meeting will be filmed for live broadcast on the internet and can be viewed on 
line at warwickshire.public-i.tv. Generally, the public gallery is not filmed, but by entering the 
meeting room and using the public seating area you are consenting to being filmed. All recording 
will be undertaken in accordance with the Council's Standing Orders. 
 
Disclosures of Pecuniary and Non-Pecuniary Interests 
Members are required to register their disclosable pecuniary interests within 28 days of their 
election of appointment to the Council.  Any changes to matters registered or new matters that 
require to be registered must be notified to the Monitoring Officer as soon as practicable after they 
arise. 
 
A member attending a meeting where a matter arises in which they have a disclosable pecuniary 
interest must (unless they have a dispensation):  
 

• Declare the interest if they have not already registered it  
• Not participate in any discussion or vote  
• Leave the meeting room until the matter has been dealt with  
• Give written notice of any unregistered interest to the Monitoring Officer within 28 days of 

the meeting  
 
Non-pecuniary interests relevant to the agenda should be declared at the commencement of the 
meeting. 
 
The public reports referred to are available on the Warwickshire Web 
https://democracy.warwickshire.gov.uk/uuCoverPage.aspx?bcr=1  
 
Public Speaking 
Any member of the public who is resident or working in Warwickshire, or who is in receipt of 
services from the Council, may speak at the meeting for up to three minutes on any matter within 
the remit of the Committee. This can be in the form of a statement or a question. If you wish to 
speak please notify Democratic Services in writing at least two working days before the meeting. 
You should give your name and address and the subject upon which you wish to speak. Full details 
of the public speaking scheme are set out in the Council’s Standing Orders.  
 
COVID-19 Pandemic 
Any member or officer of the Council or any person attending this meeting must inform Democratic 
Services if within a week of the meeting they discover they have COVID-19 or have been in close 
proximity to anyone found to have COVID-19. 
 
 

https://democracy.warwickshire.gov.uk/uuCoverPage.aspx?bcr=1


This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

Warwickshire Waste Partnership 
 
Wednesday 15 March 2023  
 

Minutes 
 
Attendance 
 
Committee Members 
Warwickshire County Council 
Councillor Heather Timms (Chair) 
Councillor Tim Sinclair 
Andrew Pau, Waste Management and Partnerships Group Manager 
Ruth Dixon, Waste Strategy and Commissioning Manager 
Tamalyn Goodwin, Project Manager (Waste Strategy and Commissioning) 
 
North Warwickshire Borough Council 
Councillor Margaret Bell 
Cath James, Interim Corporate Director – Streetscape 
 
Nuneaton and Bedworth Borough Council 
Councillor Sue Markham 
Jamie Lewis, Waste Management Contract Support Officer 
 
Rugby Borough Council 
Councillor Kathryn Lawrence 
Anton Cuscito, Interim Transport & Waste Manager  
 
Stratford District Council 
Councillor Bill Flemming 
Julie Lewis, Head of Environmental and Operational Services 
 
Warwick District Council 
Councillor Moira-Anne Grainger 
Zoe Court, Contract Services Manager 
Steve Partner,  
 
 
 
1. General 

(1) Apologies 
 Councillor Bhagwant Pandher (WCC) 

Councillor Andy Wright (WCC) 
Claire Preston was substituted by Anton Cuscito (Interim Transport & Waste Manager for 
RBC) 
Glen McCrandle was substituted by Jamie Lewis (NBBC) 
 

Page 5

Page 1 of 8 Agenda Item 1(4)



 

Page 2 
Warwickshire Waste Partnership 
 
15.03.23 

(2) Disclosures of Pecuniary and Non-Pecuniary Interests 
 None. 

 
(3) Chair's Announcements 

 None. 
 
(4) Minutes of the Previous Meeting, Including Matters Arising 

 The minutes were approved as a correct record. 
 
 

2. Waste Management Performance Data for Quarter 3 2022-23 and National Benchmarking 
2021-22 

In response to Andrew Pau, Ruth Dixon clarified that the national benchmarking figures from 
DEFRA were not published yet so were unavailable for this meeting. 
In response to Councillor Moira-Anne Grainger, Andrew Pau agreed to circulate these figures 
when they’re obtained. The figures will be put into a report that compared Warwickshire’s figures 
with its neighbours. The figures would not show the new 1-2-3 waste collection system in place for 
Warwick and Stratford. This will be ready for June’s meeting and will show the provisional figures 
for 2022-23. 
  
Andrew Pau highlighted the following points: 

• The report showed the first three quarters of this and last financial year 
• The total of household waste decreased by 17,000 tonnes since last year 
• The reduction in residual waste led to the recycling rates increasing despite tonnage 

decreasing 
• Composting rates were static despite the decrease in tonnage 
• Landfill rates had decreased but more energy was being obtained from waste as more was 

being burnt 
• The estimated performance table did not take the new 1-2-3 system in Warwick and 

Stratford in their statistics 
• There was a projected increase in performance to 49.4% this year compared to 47.9% last 

year. However, this could go over 50% due to increased performance from all authorities 
• Residual waste decreased to a projected 466 kilograms per household. Added to recycling 

and composting rates, this would increase to 921 kilograms per household 
• This would be comparable to the top preforming authorities nationally 
• Recycling at HWRCs were expected to increase to 54.3% from 54.1% but this was a 

reduction from the 55.6% the previous year due to rates stagnating and a reduction in 
recycling 

  
In response to the Chair, Andrew Pau confirmed that the reduction in residual waste showed that 
statistics were returning to pre-Covid levels. People going out meant there was less waste to 
collect. It was a hot summer and a lack of rainfall in the summer of 2022 so this led to a reduction 
in garden waste collection and composting rates.   
  
Councillor Grainger noted that it was disappointing their figures were unable to be reported as 
other members and the public wanted to know what difference the new collection system made. 
Andrew Pau said that Stratford and Warwick had done some work looking into how the new 1-2-3 
system and saw it had reduced tonnages; this will be reported when they have a years’ worth of 

Page 6

Page 2 of 8



 

Page 3 
Warwickshire Waste Partnership 
 
15.03.23 

data. Julie Lewis added that only the figures for August 2022 to now needed to be compared to 
show the impact it made; she put together a spreadsheet that showed the statistics from April 
2022-February 2022.  
  
Ruth Dixon stated that with food waste collections, to procure WCC’s anaerobic digestion facility, 
they needed to make predictions on how much food waste WCC expected to collect. They 
guessed 10,000 tons which was accurate.   
  
In response Councillor Tim Sinclair, Andrew Pau agreed to circulate the link showing how energy 
is generated from food waste. He added that as there was no separate line for food waste, the 
collection tonnage is included in the recycling tonnage.  
  
The link showing how food waste is made into energy can be found here: 
https://www.stgreenpower.co.uk/food-waste-recycling 
 
 
3. Update on the Development of the Resources and Waste Strategy for England 
Ruth Dixon informed the group that: 

• In January 2023, WCC spoke to DEFRA on being the disposal authority and how it worked 
with collection authorities including payments 

• WCC requested a meeting with DEFRA regarding their new food waste disposal contract 
• DEFRA provide monthly updates for authorities who want to drop in but there was not a lot 

of opportunity for questions 
• The National Resource and Waste Strategy was published in 2018 and consultations were 

carried out in 2019 and 2021. Some feedback from the 2021 consultations was received but 
it had not all been received yet 

• The elements that WCC was interested in were now called CPR (Consistency and 
Packaging Reforms) 

• With Extended Producer Responsibility (EPR) this means that the local authority should be 
paid for the management (collection and the disposal) of all household packaging that 
passes through. This will be funded by the producer so consumer goods would cost a bit 
more to pay for this  

• DEFRA were working with Local Authorities on EPR about how these payment to them 
would be made. Tonnages amounts are given to DEFRA to deal with this 

• Each authority would be put into one of nine categories that WRAP was developing. EPR 
should be finalised by April 2024, and this would include how much each authority would 
get paid to deal with this waste. This amount could be accepted or go to appeal. This would 
cover everything apart from DRS (deposit return scheme) and expensive food waste 
containers that could be sold e.g. a steel can 

• Over the next few months DEFRA will carry out a composition analysis from pre-selected 
households to see what the composition of their recycling and residual waste bins are as 
well as HWRCs and street bins. They picked certain individual authorities to become a part 
of different working groups/panels 

• If chosen, WCC were planning not to accept the HWRC composition element because 
WCC did this in house. WCC volunteered themselves for the authority groups because of 
this 

Page 7

Page 3 of 8

https://www.stgreenpower.co.uk/food-waste-recycling


 

Page 4 
Warwickshire Waste Partnership 
 
15.03.23 

• For the DRS, it would likely be maximised to 25p per bottle, and it will apply in England to 
plastic drinks containers e.g. water bottles but not milk cartons as they were not transparent 
plastic. It will apply to metal cans but not glass  

• Scotland and Wales planned for their DRS to include glass too but as Warwickshire was not 
near enough their borders it would not alter the statistics 

• England’s DRS will apply to containers between 50ml to three litres in size 
• DRS machines would be implemented into supermarkets and other public places, and they 

will read the barcode giving money back. If eligible waste is put in council bins, then the 
local authority may be able to retain the DRS money 

• Scotland’s scheme was planned to start on the 16th August 2023 but this may not happen 
as it was a contentious issue for some of the prospective leaders standing to be First 
Minister 

• England’s DRS was planned to start of the 1st October 2025 
• With the consistency in collections, this focuses on telling collection authorities what they 

can/cannot do. It’s expected that there will be mandatory separate food waste collections by 
April 2025.  

• WRAP is offering local authorities’ consultation and Rugby have had theirs 
• By 2025 all authorities were expected to collect Tetra Pack and plastic film by 2026/27 
• There could be a comment on the collection frequency, charging for garden waste collection 

and collecting recyclable waste separately or comingled or this could be left locally. 
Sherborn Recycling can already handle all of this 

• When DREFA release this guidance, this will be shared. It was expected that this will be 
released at the same time as some of the consultation feedback 

• Each collection authority should have provided up to date information to DEFRA by the 31st 
March 2023 as they will use this to work out new burdens payment for food waste collection 
and EPR payments  

• DEFRA’s next local authority engagement session is the 5th April which should cover their 
bin composition assessment 

  
Andrew Pau noted that it was good to get more clarity on the DRS and more things were expected 
to be confirmed by central government over the next few months. This included the compulsory 
weekly food waste collection. WCC will go out to procurement for their new anaerobic digestion 
contract in the next few months. 
  
In response to Councillor Katheryn Lawrence, Ruth Dixon stated that Sherbourne Recycling would 
send information directly to DEFRA as any information would come from the local authorities. Each 
local authority will submit their own data and get their EPR payment back. Recycling credits will sit 
separately from this, and DEFRA was still establishing what they will do about this. Local 
authorities would need to submit it individually because recycling on its own was not the whole 
picture and authorities need to talk about how much money it costs them to run their service. 
Sherbourne Recycling would not know how much their collection vehicle cost. In the future, 
DEFRA and the EA should develop a EDOCS system for all waste transactions including 
household, industrial and commercial ones. However, this had been in development for 20 years.  
Julie Lewis added that Sherborne Recycling were dealing with Stratford and Warwick’s dry 
recycling because they arranged where it went. Details showing a breakdown of the materials they 
receive each month were given, so they know how much it costs to dispose of it.  
  

Page 8

Page 4 of 8



 

Page 5 
Warwickshire Waste Partnership 
 
15.03.23 

Councillor Margaret Bell stated that the DRS plan for what plastics could be accepted would never 
be fully understood by the public and the infrastructure could be used better. It was inevitable that 
the public would put recyclables in council bins so local authorities would have to pay for it 
regardless.  
Ruth Dixon noted that the purpose of the DRS was to reduce recyclable litter and create a better 
form of the recycled plastic. The reforms should leave to better labelling so each container should 
say if the consumer can claim money back on it via the DRS. If done properly, the consumers 
should be paying everything so theoretically local authorities should not pay the DRS. 
 
 
4. Flytipping Statistics (2021/22) and Current Issues 
Andrew Pau informed the group that: 

• All local authorities in England can report how much fly tipping tonnes of rubbish is found in 
their area via ‘Fly Capture’. The most up to date data of this was 2021/22  

• WWP had talked about enforcement before, but more could be done 
• RBC had a commercial style contract to deal with fly tipping, and a lot of work was being 

done in NBBC too 
• Generally, fly tipping had increased or the incidents of fly tipping being reported had 

increased 
• Large changes in fly tipping instances were difficult to explain. However, in 2018-2020, 

NBBC changed contractor for fly tipping, so this meant their operation was slicker and led to 
their fly tipping statistics increasing 

• Some authorities got a large increase in fly tipping in lockdown i.e. Stratford’s statistics 
doubled 

  
Councillor Sue Markham noted that what was classed as fly tipping could be litter and vice versa. 
For consistency, what was labelled as fly tipping needed to be consistent cross-county.  
  
In response to Councillor Sinclair, Julie Lewis stated that there was no evidence that suggested 
that the 1-2-3 collection system led to an increase in fly tipping in Stratford District. The street 
cleansing contract was let at the same time as the 1-2-3 one, if this led to the bins overflowing and 
this being reported as fly tipping, then BIFFA would have let officers know. 
  
Andrew Pau informed the group that there was a West Midlands waste officer meeting later in 
March and fly tipping will be discussed there.   
 
 
5. Recycling Capture Trial at Judkins Household Waste Recycling Centre 
Andrew Pau highlighted the following points: 

• In 2019/20 there was a black bag splitting trial at Cherry Orchard HWRC where black bags 
were sorted through to take the recycling out. Members of the public were given the option 
to do this themselves too 

• External funding was obtained to undertake this, but it had to stop because of Covid-19 
• 8/9 of Warwickshire’s HWRCs are run by WCC but Judkins in Nuneaton is run FCC 
• FCC started a trial that in January 2023 where they took unsorted residual waste bags and 

manually separated out the contents by material 
• Early results showed that they were pulling out a lot of recycling especially cardboard and 

textiles 

Page 9

Page 5 of 8



 

Page 6 
Warwickshire Waste Partnership 
 
15.03.23 

• They are finding 4-4.5 tonnes of recyclable waste in residual waste weekly 
• WCC paid a fix fee for this trial, but FCC had to pay for the waste disposal 
• If this trial is proven successful, then WCC will do it at their other HWRCs  
• FCC have done this trial at their other HWRCs where they had similar successes  

  
In response to Councillor Bell, Andrew Pau stated that FCC’s business case for this trial was a 
mixture of them saving money by splitting it early and an education exercise for the public so they 
would see what is recyclable. It was reported that members of the public were now less likely to 
bring in black bags and were more likely to bring in their bag contents already separated. 
 
 
6. Waste Partners Update 
North Warwickshire 
Cath James introduced herself as the Interim Director for Streetscape and she was Richard 
Dobbs’ replacement for the partnership until a permanent appointment was made. 
  
Nuneaton and Bedworth 
Nothing to add 
  
Rugby 
Anton Cuscito informed the group that they now had three electric vehicles for their parks and 
cemeteries department. They should arrive in April 2023. 
  
Stratford 
Julie Lewis noted that for Stratford and Warwick their garden waste collection service had loads of 
subscriptions, so the cost of living was not impacting this as expected.  
  
Warwick 
Nothing to add 
  
Warwickshire 
The Chair informed the group that Warwickshire County Council now had electric mobile library 
vehicles. 
 
 
7. Update on Climate Change (Including Skidmore Report) 
Ruth Dixon informed the group that: 

• Over the last three years, central government commissioned a study on net zero ambitions 
called the Net Zero Review 

• 1800 pieces of evidence were submitted and there were 50 round table discussions across 
the process. Contributors included WRAP, trade bodies, individual waste companies and 
local authorities 

• The report set out a long list of all the opportunities that net zero offers to the UK by a road 
map of the decisions/actions that central government should think about and take to 
achieve net zero by 2050, which is their legal commitment 

• The evidence produced 340 pages  
• The report looked at the barriers and opportunities for a net zero economy and spoke about 

acting quickly but sensibly with planning, so nothing was done hastily with unintended 
consequences  

Page 10

Page 6 of 8



 

Page 7 
Warwickshire Waste Partnership 
 
15.03.23 

• Investing in net zero now outweighed the environmental consequences of doing nothing  
• The report stated that local councils and communities should be empowered to act, and 

central government should do things to make the most of local enthusiasm  
• Cleaner air and better energy security were also benefits noted and there should be 

targets/incentives 
• Skill development would be needed because of the number of jobs that would be created by 

going net zero 
• The technology of buildings will need to be improved so they use less energy and can be 

powered by green energy 
• It mentioned the electrification of the national grid that was needed to make it work. This all 

feeds into both protecting biodiversity, enhancing nature, and helping people relate more to 
how beneficial the UK’s natural resources are  

• Central government will choose some trailblazer authorities and communities 
• The report recommended that central government progressed with the waste reforms in the 

National Resources Waste Strategy and most of the feedback said that it was taking too 
long and there was a lot of real benefits to be gained from doing most of the proposed 
reforms 

• There was a focus on the export of plastic waste and that it should go to developed nations 
who have better environmental controls. Investment in more infrastructure in this country 
would be needed where items can be collected, recycled, and turned into other things; 
especially by central government in this country  

• The social economy looked at encouraging central government to invest more in reducing 
food waste, followed by all the different levels of the circular economy starting from reducing 
and redesigning waste, followed by remanufacture, repair, reusing and keeping all that 
material in circulation 

• This could be done with construction, vehicles, food and drink and electrical appliances e.g. 
repairing then buying new 

• There is a lot of embedded carbon in textiles so it would be good to have more systems 
implemented to allow clothes to be worn more often before they are no longer wanted  

• Industrial symbiosis is industrial waste swapping e.g. one industry has a waste material and 
it could be a raw/input material for another industry  

• When waste is burned as a fuel, it generates carbon so a discussion was needed around 
what waste from fuel would look like in the future. Carbon capture and enhancing carbon 
capture technology for power stations would be needed but biomass and some food waste 
could be used as a fuel as well as some unrecyclable plastics  

• Public engagement should focus on reducing food waste, improving product labelling, and 
making repair easy and affordable 

 
 
8. Agenda Item Suggestions for Next Meeting 
Fly tipping in Nuneaton and Bedworth Borough 
Differences between waste collection and disposal authorities 
Warwickshire Recycles Publicity 
 
 
9. Dates of Future Meetings 
• 14th June 2023 at 2pm (this meeting will be in person) 
• 27th September 2023 at 2pm 

Page 11

Page 7 of 8



 

Page 8 
Warwickshire Waste Partnership 
 
15.03.23 

  
Ruth Dixon noted that Warwickshire Recycles will be sending out newsletters for Mother’s Day and 
Easter focussing on reducing waste. There were composting workshop spaces available to book 
via the website and composting bins available to buy. 
In response to Councillor Grainer, Ruth Dixon stated that the next composting workshops in 
Warwick District were the 18th May in Lillington and the 22nd May in Kenilworth. Councillor 
Grainger suggested holding one at Warwick Market. 
  
The Chair noted that the summer hours for the HWRCs would be advertised soon.  
In response to the Chair, Andrew Pau stated that HWRCs would be open over the Coronation 
weekend, but booking was required for them to stay open. 
  
The Chair wished everyone luck who was standing for re-election. 
 
 
 
The meeting rose at 15:24 

…………………………. 
Chair 

Page 12

Page 8 of 8



 

 1 of 3  

OFFICIAL 

Warwickshire Waste Partnership 
 

14th June 2022   
 

Waste Management Performance Data 2022 - 2023 
 

Recommendations 
 
(1) The Partnership is asked to note the provisional data for the year 2022/23.  

 
 
1.0 Data Overview 
 
1.1  This report contains a mixture of data taken from Waste Data Flow1 and from 

Warwickshire County Council in-house records and at the publication of this 
report are considered estimates. 

 
1.2 The figures should be treated as provisional as data may be changed until data 

from all authorities is approved by the Environment Agency (EA) and 
Departmene of Environment Food and Rural Affairs (DEFRA) through the 
Waste Data Flow System . 

  
Name Contact Information 

Report Author Nav Rai navrai@warwickshire.gov.uk    
  

Assistant Director, 
Communities 

Dave 
Ayton Hill 

davidayton-hill@warwickshire.gov.uk  

Strategic Director for 
Communities  

Mark 
Ryder 

markryder@warwickshire.gov.uk  

Portfolio Holder for  
Environment and Heritage 
and Culture 

Heather 
Timms 

cllrtimms@warwickshire.gov.uk  

 
 
 
 
 

 
1 Waste Data Flow is a national web based system used for municipal waste data reporting by UK 
local authorities to government  

Page 13

Page 1 of 3 Agenda Item 3

mailto:navrai@warwickshire.gov.uk
mailto:davidayton-hill@warwickshire.gov.uk
mailto:markryder@warwickshire.gov.uk
mailto:cllrtimms@warwickshire.gov.uk


 

2 
 

OFFICIAL 

Provisional Waste Management Data 
 2022/23 

 
1. Provisional performance 2022/23 (household waste) 

 

  
2021/22 

 
2022/23 

 
Change  

 

58,168 
tonnes 

57,552 
tonnes 

 
✖ 

616 tonnes down 
 Recycling/Reuse rate 

22.3% 24.2% 
 
 

1.9% up 
 

66,574 
tonnes 

62,857 
tonnes 

 
✖ 

3,717 tonnes down 
 Composting rate 

25.5% 26.4% 
 
 

0.9%  up 
 

124,742 
tonnes 

120,409 
tonnes 

 
✖ 

4,333 tonnes down 
 

Recycling, 
Composting and 

Reuse rate 
47.7% 50.6% 

 
 

2.9% up 
 

25,239 
tonnes 

16,013 
tonnes 

 
 

9,226 tonnes down 
 Landfill rate  

9.7% 6.7% 
 
 

3.0% down 
 

111,371 
tonnes 

101,717 
tonnes 

 
✖ 

9,654 tonnes down 
 Energy from waste 

42.6% 42.7% 
 
 

      0.1% up 
 

 
23,213 tonnes     

down 
  Total Household waste 261,352 

tonnes 
238,139 
tonnes  

 
8.9% down 

 

Page 14

Page 2 of 3



 

3 
 

OFFICIAL 

2. Estimated performance for year 2022/23 (household waste)  
 

 
 

3. HWRC Performance 2022/23 
 

 

HH 28,580 28,790 29,210 57,870 58,390 58,980 48,990 48,990 49,520 61,220 62,340 63,680 65,395 66,550 67,500 N/A N/A N/A 261,490 265,070 268,900

2020-21 2021-22 2022-23 2020-21 2021-22 2022-23 2020-21 2021-22 2022-23 2020-21 2021-22 2022-23 2020-21 2021-22 2022-23 2020-21 2021-22 2022-23 2020-21 2021-22 2022-23
est est est est est est est

5,414 4,028 5,578 10,144 8,781 7,498 9,400 9,107 9,213 14,861 13,513 13,744 12,822 11,779 12,364 10,468 10,960 9,155 63,109 58,168 57,552
tonnes tonnes tonnes tonnes tonnes tonnes tonnes tonnes tonnes tonnes tonnes tonnes tonnes tonnes tonnes tonnes tonnes tonnes tonnes tonnes tonnes
18.3% 14.3% 21.7% 19.2% 17.3% 16.6% 21.7% 21.6% 23.6% 23.9% 23.3% 26.2% 22.0% 21.2% 23.8% 44.0% 40.8% 38.4% 23.4% 22.3% 24.2%

7,843 6,176 5,361 10,032 10,412 7,904 10,067 9,090 7,842 22,146 18,692 19,850 19,020 18,228 17,856 2,472 3,976 4,044 71,580 66,574 62,857
tonnes tonnes tonnes tonnes tonnes tonnes tonnes tonnes tonnes tonnes tonnes tonnes tonnes tonnes tonnes tonnes tonnes tonnes tonnes tonnes tonnes

26.6% 22.0% 20.9% 19.0% 20.5% 17.5% 23.3% 21.6% 20.1% 35.5% 32.2% 37.8% 32.6% 32.8% 34.4% 10.4% 14.8% 17.0% 26.5% 25.5% 26.4%

13,257 10,204 10,939 20,176 19,193 15,402 19,467 18,197 17,055 37,007 32,205 33,594 31,842 30,007 30,220 12,940 14,936 13,199 134,689 124,742 120,409
tonnes tonnes tonnes tonnes tonnes tonnes tonnes tonnes tonnes tonnes tonnes tonnes tonnes tonnes tonnes tonnes tonnes tonnes tonnes tonnes tonnes

44.9% 36.3% 42.6% 38.2% 37.8% 34.1% 45.0% 43.2% 43.6% 59.4% 55.5% 64.0% 54.6% 54.0% 58.2% 54.4% 55.6% 55.4% 49.9% 47.7% 50.6%

16,262 17,883 14,768 32,654 31,551 29,785 23,821 23,890 22,020 25,301 25,834 18,884 26,506 25,515 21,660 10,839 11,937 10,613 135,383 136,610 117,730
tonnes tonnes tonnes tonnes tonnes tonnes tonnes tonnes tonnes tonnes tonnes tonnes tonnes tonnes tonnes tonnes tonnes tonnes tonnes tonnes tonnes
55.1% 63.7% 57.4% 61.8% 62.2% 65.9% 55.0% 56.8% 56.4% 40.6% 44.5% 36.0% 45.4% 46.0% 41.8% 45.6% 44.4% 44.6% 50.1% 52.3% 49.4%

29,519 28,087 25,707 52,830 50,744 45,187 43,288 42,087 39,075 62,308 58,039 52,478 58,348 55,522 51,880 23,779 26,873 23,812 270,072 261,352 238,139
tonnes tonnes tonnes tonnes tonnes tonnes tonnes tonnes tonnes tonnes tonnes tonnes tonnes tonnes tonnes tonnes tonnes tonnes tonnes tonnes tonnes

569 621 506 564 540 505 486 488 445 413 414 297 405 383 321 518 515 438
Kg Kg Kg Kg Kg Kg Kg Kg Kg Kg Kg Kg Kg Kg Kg N/A N/A N/A Kg Kg Kg

1,033 976 880 913 869 766 884 859 789 1,018 931 824 892 834 769 1,033 986 886
Kg Kg Kg Kg Kg Kg Kg Kg Kg Kg Kg Kg Kg Kg Kg N/A N/A N/A Kg Kg Kg

Total

Kg of 
residual   
per HH

Kg of all 
waste per 

HH

Warwickshire

Recycling 
rate

Composting 
rate

Recycling, 
Composting 
and Reuse 

Rate

Residual

North Warwickshire Nuneaton and Bedworth Rugby Stratford Warwick HWRC

HWRC 
Performance 

2022-23

Burton 
Farm 

HWRC

Cherry 
Orchard 
HWRC

Hunters 
Lane 

HWRC & 
Transfer

Judkins 
HWRC

Lower 
House 
Farm

Princes 
Drive 

HWRC & 
Transfer

Shipston 
HWRC

Stockton 
HWRC

Wellesbo
urne 

HWRC
Total

Recycling % 57.5 55.5 57.8 52.9 53.7 55.7 56.2 52.1 55.3 55.4

P
age 15

P
age 3 of 3



T
his page is intentionally left blank



1 of 6 
 

OFFICIAL 

Warwickshire Waste Partnership 
 

15 March 2023 
 

Waste Partners Report 
 

Recommendation(s) 
 
1. The Waste Partnership is asked to acknowledge the updates on the various 

waste activities taking place in each area since the last partnership meeting in 
March 2023. 

 
1.0 Introduction 
 
1.1 This report provides an update on the various waste activities taking place in 

each authority area. 
 
2.0 North Warwickshire Borough Council 
 
2.1    NWBC are finalising the haulage contract with Sherborne Recycling so we can 

start to divert our waste to the new facility from the end of August. NWBC will 
also be looking at what additional materials we can recycle with Sherborne and 
developing a campaign for our residents to promote this. 

 
2.2 NWBC will be monitoring the key policy issues coming forward around the 

Deposit Return Scheme legislation, Packaging Regulations, and the future 
impacts of Consistency on our services. 

2.3 A new vehicle has been acquired specifically for Trade Waste. This vehicle is 
slightly different to the 26T RCV collection vehicle but is designed to ensure 
Trade Waste collections are made more efficient and give scope for future 
custom. 

2.4 NWBC are trialing a 7.5T vehicle from June 2023 which is a kind of hybrid 
designed for food waste collections which can also be used for rural domestic 
rounds. 

  
2.5 NBBC are working on Risk Assessments and SSOW’s following the Health and 

Safety Executive (HSE) Bulletin and Waste Industry Safety and Health (WISH) 
Position Statement on Auto/Semi-Auto bin lifts. This follows on from the tragic 
death of a worker at Coventry City Council. There will be much work to do 
followed by a similar amount of training of staff. 

 
2.6 NWBC are looking at introducing a new crew monitoring system operated 

through a Control Centre run by Biffa. This requires a level of Camera System, 
fortunately, we have this system on our 26T RCV’s. 

 

Page 17

Page 1 of 6 Agenda Item 7

https://www.sherbournerecycling.co.uk/
https://www.wishforum.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2023/03/WISH-position-statement-automatic-bin-lfts-March-2023.pdf
https://www.wishforum.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2023/03/WISH-position-statement-automatic-bin-lfts-March-2023.pdf


2 of 6 
 

OFFICIAL 

2.7 New In-Cab seems to be working fine, NWBC will soon be entering Phase 2 
and would like to have everything up and running or in place by October which 
would include a new Rural round. 

 
3.0 Nuneaton & Bedworth Borough Council 
 
3.1 Refuse, Recycling and Street Cleansing 
 
a) Oakwood student placements into waste service areas going well and have 

now expanded the opportunities into housing services. 
 
b) Inter departmental works assistance increasing for river clearance, littering 

and waste removal.  
 
c) Ongoing staff training scheduled in 2023 with a firm focus on H&S. 
 
d) Street cleansing review commenced for 23/24 in support of our Building a 

Better Borough commitment and expected increases in night time economy in 
line with the town regeneration projects.  

 
e) Procurement of a 7.5 tonne RCV and 32 tonne hook lift progressing well.  
 
f) Litter picking of the A444 to hopefully commence June, subject to WCC 

highways permit approval. 
 
g) Following cabinet approval, we will commence co-mingled recycling 

collections from late Autumn 2023. 
 
h) Refuse collection and recycling round re-configuration works almost 

completed with and implementation date set for summer 2023. 
 
I)  Anti Violence against staff campaign set to be launched shortly to respond the 

increasing number of incidents and promote our zero tolerance approach to 
this.  

 
j) The paid for wheeled bin replacement policy for developers and residents 

going well with some expected minor issues experienced.  
  
3.2 Enforcement 
 
a) Environmental enforcement recruitment successfully undertaken by our partner 

District Enforcement.  
 
b) Several meetings have taken place with regards to our enforcement model at 

NBBC officers looking to provide information and feedback via the officer sub 
group.   

 
 
  
3.3 Promotions/Communications 

Page 18

Page 2 of 6



3 of 6 
 

OFFICIAL 

 
a) Preparation started for Christmas and New Year 2023 / 2024 collections.  
 
b) Preparations now being undertaken to promote and communicate new garden 

waste collections year 23/24. 
 
c) Round re-configuration implementation plan on track with communications to 

be released shortly outlining changes to residents. 
 
d)  Communications / recycling roadshow to be re started for information and 

guidance to residents of the borough, with enforcement dovetailing into the 
these. 

 
4.0 Rugby Borough Council 
 
4.1 The in-cab system for domestic and recycling rounds should be up and running 

by mid-June. 
 
4.2 Fly tipping is still on the increase, the increase on asbestos fly tips has levelled 

out. 
 
4.3 9 new refuse collection vehicles have been ordered through the fleet 

replacement programme for waste and recycling operations and should be 
arriving mid-August. 

 
4.4 More staff training has been completed since March 2024 (cost of living crisis 

– looking out for vulnerable people situations) with an ongoing training schedule 
taking place throughout 2023 (the safe operation of using bin lift equipment 
taking place, after a fatality at Coventry City Council).  The training will be 
ongoing throughout the year.  

 
4.5 The new Waste Services Development Officer (Alex Becker) is now in post.  
 
 
5.0 Warwick District Council 
 
5.1 Warwick District Council are now collecting food waste from a few communal 

sites and the Council has more sites to visit to assess suitability for them to be 
added onto a collection round. 

 
5.2 Unfortunately, the Waste Education and Enforcement Officer recruitment was 

unsuccessful, so it is being advertised again.  
 
5.3 Warwick District Council have sold over 36,000 garden waste permits. 
 
5.4 Warwick District Council are now preparing the communications for the end of 

the university year, working with Warwick University Student Union. 
Encouraging students to donated unwanted furniture and household goods 
rather than dumping them outside their properties. Letters are also being sent 
to the HMO landlords.  

Page 19

Page 3 of 6



4 of 6 
 

OFFICIAL 

 
5.5 Warwick District Council raised over £800 from the collection of unwanted red 

boxes/green wheeled bins, which were collected and recycled by Plastic 
Experts. The Council will be doing a press release with this being donated to 
the Chairmans Charity to demonstrate that these were disposed of responsibly.  

 
5.6 In February half term, Warwick District Council ran a competition for primary 

schools to design a recycling poster for the side of the Refuse Collection 
Vehicles (RCVs). The 10 winning entries are now displayed on the side of the 
RCV trucks, along with an advert to encourage residents to download the waste 
app. A press release will be going out shortly to showcase the winning designs, 
along with our new Portfolio Holder.  

 
5.8 Warwick District Council have over 20,000 residents signed up to receive 

notifications on the waste app and it was used recently to remind residents to 
renew their garden waste permits. The facility to link the app with Alexa devices 
will be available shortly.  

 
5.9 Warwick District Council will be supporting ‘Love your Park’ week in July and 

encouraging residents and visitors to take their recycling home with them rather 
than using the parks litter bins.  

 
6.0 Stratford-on-Avon District Council 
 
6.1 The new joint Stratford District Council and Warwick District Council waste 

collection contract is going well. Highlight data for the whole joint service: 
 

• In April 2023, missed collections per 100,000 were 23. 
• Residual waste collected has fallen by 10,625 tonnes from August 2022 to April 

2023 compared to the same period in the previous year. 
• Dry recycling collected has increased by 900 tonnes during the same period. 
• 7,519 tonnes of food waste have been collected since August 2022. 

 
6.2 Garden waste subscriptions for 2023/24 are currently in excess of 44,000 and 

still rising.  
 
6.3   Stratford District Council have over 25,000 residents signed up to receive 

notifications on the waste app. 
 
6.3 Fly-tipping incidents fell by 30% in 2022/23 compared to 2021/22. 
 
7.0     Warwickshire County Council 
 
7.1 Household Waste Recycling Centres (HWRCs) 
 

a) All the HWRCs are open and continue to operate with a ‘live’ booking system 
which prevents queueing. Booking will be important for evening out demand for 
visits as the weather improves. Reuse shops are open at all sites bar Stockton. 
  

Page 20

Page 4 of 6

https://www.warwickdc.gov.uk/info/20835/123_waste_collections/1827/waste_collection_app
https://www.warwickdc.gov.uk/info/20835/123_waste_collections/1827/waste_collection_app


5 of 6 
 

OFFICIAL 

b) Food waste transfer continues at Princes Drive and Burton Farm prior to 
transfer to the Severn Trent Green Power anaerobic digestion facility at 
Coleshill.  

 
c) Warwickshire County Council are currently unable to accept upholstered 

seating at Shipston, Stockton and Wellesbourne. This is due to us now not 
sending this waste to landfill.  

 
7.2 Communication activities update: 
 

a) 8680 subscribers received the recent edition of the ‘Warwickshire Recycles’ e-
newsletter.  
 
Edition Open rate Click Rate 
Food Waste Action Week 41% 10% 
Easter Edition 43% 5% 

 
b) Slim Your Bin has recruited 1,348 'bin dieters' onto its 4-week training 

programme. On a monthly basis 390 households are reporting their recycling 
and 260 are reducing their food waste. Users can now see how much carbon 
they have saved through their actions. NBBC slimmers gained the most points 
and nominated Myton Hospice for the annual charity donation. 

 
c) Schools’ waste reduction, composting and recycling activities in a face-to-face 

format have resumed. 33 school visits have been carried out so far this 
academic year – we are targeting to engage with at least 6000 pupils and their 
families this year. 

 
d) In-person home composting workshops were run in the spring, reaching 223 

residents: 
 
Bedworth Library, Atherstone Library, Napton Village Hall, Rugby Library, 
Kenilworth Library, Charlecote, Online Workshop, Stratford Town Hall, Warwick 
Horticultural Society, Ash Green Residents Association 

 
The YouTube Home Composting Workshop launched last year has been 
viewed 2048 times and feedback has been very positive.  
 
Subsidised cold compost bins and hot compost bins (Green Johannas) are 
available to purchase online for home delivery. Sales of composting equipment 
so far this year are strong, with sales this year expected to be similar to the high 
sales of last year. 
 
We offer talks about waste reduction and home composting to community 
groups and will be out and about in the community over the summer. 
 

e) All waste reduction behaviour change activity is promoted with regular posts on 
our social media accounts. We have 1023 followers on Twitter 
(@WarksRecycles) and 2611 Facebook followers (Warwickshire Recycles). 

Page 21

Page 5 of 6



6 of 6 
 

OFFICIAL 

Articles about reducing food waste, composting, repair, refill, Slim Your Bin, 
recycling and battery disposal were shared widely. 

 
7.3 Procurement and Contracts update: 
 

a) Procurements recently awarded include residual waste disposal (Veolia at Ling 
Hall Landfill) and metal recycling from HWRCs (Whites Recycling of Coventry). 
 

b) Procurements currently taking place include food waste reprocessing, 
plasterboard reprocessing and bulk haulage.  
 

c) Upcoming procurements/projects in 2023/4 include food waste haulage, waste 
composition, asbestos disposal, abandoned vehicles and wood reprocessing. 

 
8.0 Financial Implications 
 
8.1 None. 
 
9.0  Next steps 
 
9.1 Updates on progress to be provided at the September 2023 meeting. 
 
Background papers 

 
None. 
  

Name Contact Information 
Report Author Tamalyn 

Goodwin 
tamalyngoodwin@warwickshire.gov.uk    

Assistant Director, 
Communities 

Dave 
Ayton Hill 

davidayton-hill@warwickshire.gov.uk  

Strategic Director for 
Communities  

Mark 
Ryder 

markryder@warwickshire.gov.uk  

Portfolio Holder for  
Environment and Heritage 
and Culture 

Heather 
Timms 

cllrtimms@warwickshire.gov.uk  

 
 

Page 22

Page 6 of 6

mailto:tamalyngoodwin@warwickshire.gov.uk
mailto:davidayton-hill@warwickshire.gov.uk
mailto:markryder@warwickshire.gov.uk
mailto:cllrtimms@warwickshire.gov.uk

	Agenda
	1(4) Minutes of the previous meeting, including matters arising
	3 Waste Management Performance Data 2022-2023 and national benchmarking (2021/22)
	7 Waste Partners Update

